
Agenda 
Town of Indialantic 

Regular Meeting of the Town Council 
Wednesday, September 9, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. 

NOTICE: This meeting will not be held at Town Hall. This meeting will be held utilizing Communications 
Media Technology in accordance with Governor DeSantis’ Executive Order No. 20-69 and Town Emergency 
Order 2020-09. Those wishing to attend the meeting are encouraged to join the meeting online using the 
Zoom Webinar platform or by telephone.  

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://zoom.us/j/96447824214?pwd=cHJBeUFweFg4a2xXbEJUd2RHMWFlQT09 
Passcode: 359531 
Or iPhone one-tap :  
    US: +13017158592,,96447824214#,,,,,,0#,,359531#  or +13126266799,,96447824214#,,,,,,0#,,359531# 
Or Telephone: 

 Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
 US: +1 301 715 8592  or +1 312 626 6799  or +1 646 558 8656  or +1 253 215 8782  or +1 346 248 7799  or 

+1 669 900 9128
Webinar ID: 964 4782 4214
Passcode: 359531

 Instructions on how to join a Zoom meeting: https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-
Meeting\ 

Public Comments, prior to the meeting, can be submitted: 
By drop box until 2:00 p.m. on the date of the meeting. Deposit written comments in the drop box located at 
the rear entrance of Town Hall, 216 Fifth Avenue, Indialantic, FL 32903. 
By email until 2:00 p.m. on the date of the meeting. Email comments to: townhall@indialantic.com. Write 
“Public Comments” in the subject line.  

Public Comments, during the meeting, (3 minutes per speaker): 
Click on “Raise Hand” button to speak. The public will be joining the meeting by audio only (no video). At the 
appropriate time, a member of the public can indicate that he/she would like to offer a public comment by (1) 
Pressing the “Raise Hand” button in Zoom; or (2) dialing *9 if calling in on a telephone line.  

Technical Issues: If staff or councilmembers experience technical issues the meeting will be temporarily halted 
until the issues are resolved; if the issue cannot be resolved, the meeting will be adjourned. 

A. Call to Order:
1. Pledge of Allegiance
2. Changes to Agenda
3. Presentations and Proclamations
4. Public Comments, Non-agenda items:

Note: Persons wishing to address the Town Council on a matter not listed on the agenda may speak at
this time. Click on “raise hand” button in Zoom or dial *9 if calling from a telephone. Speaks must



provide their name and address and direct their comments to the council and not to members of the 
audience. Please observe the 3-minute time limit and speak only after being recognized by the Mayor. 

5. Public Announcements:
• There are openings on the following boards and committees: Civil Service; Code Enforcement,

Heritage, Pension (General), Parks/Recreation/Beautification, and Playground Advisory.
• The final public hearing for adoption of the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget and Millage Rate will

be on Monday, Sept. 21, 2020 at 5:30 p.m. via Zoom Webinar.
• Three candidates have qualified to run for Mayor and will be on the ballot for the November 3,

2020 election: Dave Berkman (incumbent), Melvyn Chang, and Edwin Mackiewicz III.
• Simon Kemp (incumbent) qualified and is unopposed for Town Council Seat #2. Stu Glass

(incumbent) qualified and is unopposed for Town Council Seat #4.
• The annual Witch Way 5K and Halloween Festival have been canceled due to COVID-19.

B. Consent Agenda:
1. Approve Council Meeting Minutes and Council Budget Workshop Minutes for 8-12-2020
2. Approve IAFF Amendment #2, Cost of Living Allowance
3. Adopt Resolution No. 15-2020 Parking by Permit Only, Tampa Ave. & Watson Drive
4. Approve Installation of Speed Cushions on Michigan Ave. and First Ave.
5. Approve MOU with United Way for a “Little Free Library” in Lilly Park
6. Approve Letter of Agreement and Contract for High Visibility Enforcement (HVE)
7. Approve Appointments/Reappointments:

a. Playground Advisory Committee – Appoint Rachel Homza; Appoint Rosie Amoroso
b. Parks, Recreation, & Beautification Committee – Appoint Laura Baughn; Reappoint Anne

Maquire; Reappoint Marie Darling; Reappoint Cathy Berkman; Reappoint Sarah Horschel
c. Civil Service Board – Reappoint Irene Quilleux,
d. Heritage Committee – Reappoint Lois Schiessl; Reappoint Cindy Earp
e. Board of Adjustment – Reappoint Sam Martorella

C. Ordinances and Public Hearings:
1. (Discussion/Action)  Public Hearing: Adopt Tentative Millage Rate for Fiscal Year 2020-2021

The Town of Indialantic proposed millage rate for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 is 6.0923 which is 6.10% over the 
rolled back rate of 5.7423 and 2.4% above the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 millage rate of 5.9484.  The increase 
over the rolled back rate will provide funds for existing and projected public safety needs.  In addition, 
there is a separate debt millage of 1.0 mill for stormwater improvements approved by voters on March 20, 
2018.  

2. (Discussion/Action) Public Hearing: Adopt Tentative Budget for Fiscal Year 2020-2021:

The tentative fiscal year 2020-2021 budget is $6,429,479, which includes a general fund budget of 
$4,323,389. 

Be advised: The second/final public hearing to adopt the final millage rate and final budget will be held at 
5:30 p.m. on Monday, September 21, 2020 via Zoom Webinar.  



3. (Discussion/Action) Ordinance No. 2020-13 (Re: Police & Fire Pension Update Per IRS) First Reading
An Ordinance Of The Town Of Indialantic, Brevard County, Florida; Amending Chapter 2, Division 3,
Pension Plan For Police Officers And Firefighters; Amending Section 2-235, Irs Provisions; Providing For
Severability; And Providing For An Effective Date.

4. (Discussion/Action) Ordinance No. 2020-14 (Re: Park Hours) First Reading
An Ordinance Of The Town Of Indialantic, Brevard County, Florida; Relating To Parks; Making Findings;
Amending Section 5-2, Town Code Of Ordinances, Relating To Hours Of Operation Of Parks; Providing A
Severability/Interpretation Clause; And Providing For An Effective Date.

5. (Discussion/Action) Ordinance No. 2020-15 (Re: Littering) First Reading
An Ordinance Of The Town Of Indialantic, Brevard County, Florida; Relating To Littering; Making
Findings; Amending Definitions As Set Forth In Section 8-51, Town Code Of Ordinances; Revising
Sections 8-52, 8-53, And 8-54, Town Code Of Ordinances, Relating To Unlawful Acts, Penalties, And
Enforcement; Providing A Severability And Interpretation Clause; And Providing For An Effective Date.

D. Unfinished Business: (None)

E. New Business:
1. Signage regarding littering (Kemp)
2. Interlocal Agreement for Address Assignment (Casey)
3. Brevard County Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Citizens Advisory Committee (Berkman)

F. Administrative Reports:
1. Town Manager Report
2. Town Attorney Report

G. Council Reports:

H. Adjournment:

Notice:  Pursuant to Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, the Town hereby advises the public that if a person 
decides to appeal any decision made by this board, agency, or council with respect to any matter considered 
at its meeting or hearing, he will need a record of the proceedings, and that for such purpose, affected 
persons may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  This notice does not constitute consent by the 
Town for the introduction or admission into evidence of otherwise inadmissible or irrelevant evidence, nor 
does it authorize challenges or appeals not otherwise allowed by law. 

Americans with Disabilities Act: Persons planning to attend the meeting who need special assistance must 
notify the office of the town clerk at 321-723-2242 no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Council Budget Workshop Minutes 8-12-2020 
 1 of 2 

MINUTES 
TOWN OF INDIALANTIC 

TOWN COUNCIL BUDGET WORKSHOP 
AUGUST 12, 2020 AT 6:00 P.M. 

This meeting was held utilizing Communications Media Technology in accordance with 
Governor DeSantis’ Executive Order No. 20-69 and Town Emergency Order #2020-09.  

Call to Order: 
Mayor Berkman called the workshop meeting to order via Zoom Webinar at 6:02 p.m. and led the 
assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Participating: 
Honorable Dave Berkman, Mayor 
Honorable Stuart Glass, Deputy Mayor 
Honorable Simon Kemp, Councilmember 
Honorable Julie McKnight, Councilmember 
Honorable Doug Wright, Councilmember 

Also participating: 
Michael Casey, Town Manager 
Jennifer Small, Finance Director 
Rebekah Raddon, Town Clerk 

Mayor Berkman explained that attendees joining the meeting via Zoom could ask questions by clicking 
the ‘raise hand’ button. 

Discussion of Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget: 
Mr. Casey answered questions regarding the paint striping machine. There was discussion regarding 
parking meter kiosks, and repairs needed for the roof and AC at Town Hall. Deputy Mayor Glass asked 
about adding more staff to town hall as the new administrative assistant is very busy with code 
enforcement and permitting. Mr. Casey explained changes in revenue. Mrs. Small spoke briefly about an 
increase to the audit line item which is due to the OPEB report. 

There was discussion regarding the Town’s newsletter and transitioning to a digital format to save 
money on printing and postage. It was the consensus of the Council to leave funds in place in the 2020-
2021 budget but work on phasing out paper copies over the course of the year; utilizing the website and 
email subscribers list for distribution instead of mailing paper copies. The newsletter could be picked up 
at Town Hall for anyone wanting a paper copy. 

Deputy Mayor Glass suggested looking into alternatives to using Florida Today for legal advertising due 
to the increasing cost and low readership; he noted that Trader Jakes may be an option. Mayor Berkman 
would support switching if it meets the state requirements. 

There was discussion regarding operating supplies for protective services and upcoming events that 
have been cancelled due to COVID-19. Mr. Casey noted that funding was in the budget to pay the annual 

Agenda item  B.1 - Workshop Minutes 



Council Budget Workshop Minutes 8-12-2020 
 2 of 2 

storage costs and as well as new supplies needed for the 2021 Halloween festival which are ordered a 
year in advance. There was brief discussion regarding hiring a part time parking enforcement.  

It was the consensus of the Council to remove Riverside Park from the TruGreen fertilizing contract due 
to the park’s proximity to the lagoon and utilize those funds for parks maintenance. Mr. Casey said the 
Town discontinued fertilizing at another park last year and it is doing well. Mr. Casey explained that the 
lawn maintenance will go out to bid and the Public Works Department may take over some of the lawn 
maintenance projects. Mayor Berkman suggested having the parks mowed on weekdays only and 
including that as a requirement in the contract. 

Mr. Casey answered questions regarding the labor attorney increase which is due to the fire union 
negotiations which occur every three years; he noted that the funds may not be needed. Legal fees have 
increased due to the high number of ordinances. Election ballot fees are lower during presidential 
election years. Ms. Raddon answered a question regarding paper agenda packets and stated 
councilmembers can request to not have a paper packet printed if they wish.  

Captain Todd Burnett, Indialantic Fire Department, commented that the Town does not use a labor 
attorney for the police contract negotiations, and asked if it was necessary to use one for the fire 
contract. Mr. Casey said the money is budgeted as it has been in previous years, but it won’t be used if 
it’s not necessary and he hopes that will be the case. 

There being no further discussion, the workshop was adjourned at 6:51 p.m. 

______________________________ 
Dave Berkman, Mayor 

Attest: 
______________________________ 
Rebekah Raddon, CMC, Town Clerk 



Council Minutes 8-12-2020 
1 of 5 

Meeting Minutes 
Town of Indialantic 

Regular Meeting of the Town Council 
Wednesday, August 12, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. 

 This meeting was held utilizing Communications Media Technology in accordance with Governor 
DeSantis’ Executive Order No. 20-69 and Town Emergency Order #2020-09.  

A. Call to Order:
A regular meeting of the Indialantic Town Council was called to order via Zoom Webinar by Mayor 
Berkman on Wednesday, August 12, 2020 at 7:02 p.m. with the following members participating: 

Honorable Dave Berkman, Mayor 
Honorable Stu Glass, Deputy Mayor 
Honorable Simon Kemp, Councilmember 
Honorable Julie McKnight, Councilmember 
Honorable Doug Wright, Councilmember 

Also participating: 

Michael Casey, Town Manager 
Paul Gougelman, Town Attorney 
Rebekah Raddon, Town Clerk 
Michael Connor, Chief of Police 

1. Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Berkman followed by instructions for public comments.

2. Changes to agenda: none.

3. Presentations and Proclamations: none.

4. Public Comments, Non-agenda items: none.

5. Mayor Berkman read the public announcements:
• There are openings on the Code Enforcement Board, Civil Service Board, Heritage

Committee, and Playground Advisory Committee.
• The qualifying period to run for Mayor or Town Council (seats #2 and #4) ends at noon on

August 13, 2020.  For more information, contact the Town Clerk at 321-723-2242 or by
email at rraddon@indialantic.com.

• The first public hearing for the fiscal year 2020-2021 budget will be held on September 9,
2020 at 7:00 p.m., and will be held via Zoom Webinar.

• Town Hall will be closed on Monday, September 7, 2020 in observance of Labor Day.

Agenda item  B.1 - Regular Minutes 



Council Minutes 8-12-2020 
2 of 5 

B. Consent Agenda:

1. Approve Council Meeting Minutes for July 8, 2020
2. Approve Board and Committee Appointments/Reappointments:

a) Playground Advisory Committee (New committee – may consist of up to seven members,
open to resident and nonresidents.)   –  Appoint Nicholle Rothengass; Appoint Mark
McDermott; Appoint James Roland; Appoint Irene Fox-Albury

3. Adopt Resolution 10-2020 prohibiting Low Speed Vehicles on SR A1A (Casey)
4. Approve Goodwin 5K special event 11-24-2020 (Casey)
5. Adopt Resolution 11-2020  Establishing Fund Balance (Casey)
6. Appoint Deputy Mayor Glass as voting delegate for FLOC Annual Business Meeting (Raddon)
7. Adopt Resolution 12-2020 Re: Census Partnership (Glass)
8. Adopt Resolution 13-2020 Reauthorizing National Flood Insurance Program (Glass)
9. Adopt Resolution 14-2020 Re: Funding Assistance for COVID-19 (Glass)

MOTION by Deputy Mayor Glass, seconded by Councilmember Kemp, and vote unanimous to approve 
the consent agenda as written. Motion carried 5-0. 

C. Ordinances and Public Hearings:

1. Ordinance 2020-08 Second/Final Reading (Re: Declaring Emergencies)
Mr. Gougelman read the ordinance title: 
An Ordinance Of The Town Of Indialantic, Brevard County, Florida; Relating To Emergencies; Making 
Findings; Creating Sections 10-100 Through 10-105, Article Vi., Chapter 10, Town Code Of Ordinances; 
Providing Definitions, Persons Authorized To Declare An Emergency, And Term Of Emergency 
Declaration; Setting Forth Emergency Powers; Providing Penalties And For Liberality Of Construction;   
Providing A Severability/Interpretation Clause; And Providing For An Effective Date. 

There were no public comments. 

MOTION by Deputy Mayor Glass, seconded by Councilmember McKnight, and vote unanimous to 
adopt Ordinance 2020-08 on second reading. Motion carried 5-0. 

2. Ordinance 2020-09 Second/Final Reading (Re: Paid parking rates)
Mr. Gougelman read the ordinance title: 
An Ordinance Of The Town Of Indialantic, Brevard County, Florida; Relating To Parking; Making Findings; 
Amending Section 15-18.1 Of The Town Code Of Ordinances, Relating To Rates Of Compensation For 
Parking In Designated Areas Of The Public Right-Of-Way Or Areas Adjacent To The Beach; Deleting The 
Requirement That Parking Meters May Be Coin Operated; Providing That Parking Meters May Be 
Mechanically Or Electronically Operated Or Operated By Pay-By-Phone System; Providing For 



Council Minutes 8-12-2020 
3 of 5 

Enforcement; Providing For Change Of Certain Rates By Resolution; Amending The Schedule Of Fines In 
Section 15-23 Of The Town Code Of Ordinances, For Failure To Park Head In; Providing A Severability/ 
Interpretation Clause; And Providing For An Effective Date. 

MOTION by Councilmember McKnight, seconded by Deputy Mayor Glass to adopt Ordinance 2020-09 
on second reading. 

Lengthy discussion ensued regarding permit-only parking areas. There were no public comments. It was 
the Council’s consensus to have Mr. Casey draft a resolution creating ‘parking by permit only’ areas on 
Tampa Avenue and Watson Drive. Mr. Casey noted that signs will need to be purchased. 

MOTION carried 5-0. 

3. Ordinance 2020-12 First Reading (Re: Adopting a new Town Code):
Mr. Gougelman did not read the ordinance title; he explained that he would like more time to review 
the proofs provided by Municode before adopting the ordinance. He added that there will be two 
separate ordinances; the first will adopt a set of proofs showing changes with strike-through, and the 
second ordinance will be a clean copy of the code. No action was taken on Ordinance 2020-12. 

D. Unfinished Business: (None)

E. New Business:

1. Waste Management Recycling Rate Increase
Dina Reider-Hicks, Public Affairs Manager for Waste Management, spoke regarding the proposed $0.82 
increase to the monthly recycling fee charged to residents. In summary, the additional personnel needed 
to sort the contaminated and unrecyclable materials combined with the reduction in value of recyclable 
materials necessitates the increase in fees. Waste Management is committed to recycling but they need 
to make it economically viable. She noted that the increase is not related to COVID-19 and the data was 
collected from 2017-2019. She offered to provide educational materials as needed. 

MOTION by Councilmember Wright, seconded by Councilmember McKnight, and vote unanimous to 
approve the $0.82/month/customer increase. 

2. Annual Halloween Party
It was the consensus of the Council to cancel the 2020 Halloween Festival due to COVID-19. 

3. Park Hours
MOTION by Mayor Berkman, seconded by Deputy Mayor Glass to update the Ernest Kouwen-Hoven 
Riverside Park hours to close at 10 p.m. instead of 9 p.m. After some discussion, Mayor Berkman 



Council Minutes 8-12-2020 
4 of 5 

amended his motion to include having park hours be updated by resolution instead of ordinance; 
Deputy Mayor Glass concurred with the amended motion.  

Chief Connor commented that the police department receives frequent calls regarding people in the 
park after 9 p.m. and the responding police officers have indicated that people are usually fishing or star 
gazing and not causing any noise or disturbance. He supports extending the Ernest Kouwen-Hoven 
Riverside Park hours to 10 p.m. 

MOTION carried 5-0. 

4. Backyard Chickens
MOTION by Councilmember McKnight, seconded by Councilmember Wright to allow residents to have 
chickens.  
Councilmember McKnight explained that some residents would like to be able to keep chickens which 
are allowed in other municipalities. She supports allowing chickens only, not roosters, and suggested the 
Town create an ordinance allowing chickens along with requirements such as a permit, education 
requirement, and fines for violating rules. There was discussion; concerns were raised regarding the 
burden on Town staff and issues with enforcement, dogs barking at chickens, and the small size of lots in 
Town.  
Brett Miller, 220 Cocoa Avenue, opposed allowing chickens as he feels they may attract coyotes. 

MOTION failed 4-1; nay votes by Berkman, Glass, Kemp, and Wright. 

5. Reschedule November Council Meeting due to Veteran’s Day holiday 11-11-20
It was the consensus of the Council to reschedule the November Council meeting to Thursday, 
November 12, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. 

6. Town Manager Annual Evaluation and Merit Increase

MOTION by Mayor Berkman, seconded by Councilmember Kemp to approve the Town Manager 
evaluation and merit increase of 2.5%. 
There was discussion; in summary, council and staff commented that Mr. Casey is a pleasure to work 
with and has done a great job. Notably, he has provided excellent communication while dealing with 
unprecedented challenges, has shown an aptitude for working with other cities, and kept Town Hall 
running smoothly.  



Council Minutes 8-12-2020 
5 of 5 

MOTION carried 5-0. 

F. Administrative Reports:

1. Town Manager Report

Mr. Casey said the City of Melbourne appears to be opposed to the resolution banning low speed 
vehicles (LSV’s) on S.R. A1A but he feels it is worthy of supporting.  

2. Town Attorney Report – No report.

G. Council Reports:
Councilmember Wright shared his appreciation for the Town Manager and staff for their efforts during 
the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Councilmember McKnight commented regarding Mr. Gougelman’s health and was glad to see he is 
feeling better. 

Councilmember Kemp echoed similar sentiments regarding Mr. Gougelman. 

Deputy Mayor Glass said there is a virtual ethics training class on October 14. He noted the training is 
required annually and this is an easy way to get it done.  

Mayor Berkman commented that he has only received three complaints regarding the mask orders and 
that the majority of people seem to be in favor of it. He is not certain at this point when the orders will 
be discontinued.  

H. Adjourn:

There being no further discussion, the meeting was adjourned at 8:14 p.m. 

___________________________ 
Dave Berkman, Mayor 

Attest: 

_______________________________ 
Rebekah Raddon, CMC, Town Clerk 



B. 2



Agenda item B. 2



B. 3



Agenda item B. 3



B. 4



B. 5





B. 6



Agenda item B. 6































Agenda item B. 6



Agenda item B. 7



Agenda item B. 7



Agenda item B. 7



Agenda item B. 7



Agenda items: C. 1 & C. 2



Agenda item C. 2



Agenda item C. 2











































































C. 3



Agenda item C. 3





Agenda item C. 3









C. 4



Agenda item C. 4





Agenda item: C. 5 / Ordinance  2020-15
Staff Report for Revisions to Litter Code





Agenda item C. 5

















E. 1



Agenda item E. 1









E. 2





















E. 3



Agenda item E. 3



Agenda item F. 1


































